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Vision 
An Internationally Recognized Manufacturer

& Exporter, having Providing Quality Leather Products 

and Maintaining an Excellent Level of Ethical and 

Professional Standards. 

Mission Statement
The Company since inception has endeavored towards 

maximizing value addition and obtaining maximum value 

for each unit exported and to become a leading 

manufacturer/exporter of leather products in 

International market.
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1- Maintaining integrity and scrupulous dealings

2- Maintaining correct books and records of the Company

3- Avoiding conflicts of interest

4- Strictly follows the rules of leather techniques

5- Treating chemical as per specification and testing criteria.

6- This is prime priority of the company to formulate, implement and 

monitor the objectives and overall business plan.

7- Check and oversee the affairs of the company carried out within the 

existing laws/regulations and to re-arrange prudently.

8- Make sure legal and regulatory requirements of the statutory 

authorities.

9- Encourage and initiate motivation among members of the company.

10- Safeguard and protect the interest and asset of the company.

 A detailed policy for actual and perceived conflict of interest and its 
resolution relating to the members of the Board of Directors and 
employees is in place.  

Code of Ethics and Business Practices



COMPANY PROFILE

Board of Directors

Khalid H. Shah  Chief Executive/ Director   Mahmooda Shah  Director
S. Faisal Shah  Director               Jazim Shah  Director/Chairman
Mohsin Khursheed Director                                    Farooq Raza  Director
Ali Kausar Khan  Director

Board Audit Committee

Mohsin Khursheed  Chairman
Jazim Shah                 Member
Mahmooda Shah  Member

Human Resource Committee

Mohsin Khursheed               Chairman                   
S. Faisal Shah   Member
Mahmooda Shah             Member
 

Chief Financial Officer / Company Secretary

Shafqat Mahmood (Khokhar)

Auditors

Ibrahim, Shaikh & Company, Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisor

Maqbool Ahmad Bullo & Company 
Advocate 

Bankers

MCB Bank Ltd                           United Bank Ltd               Faysal Bank Ltd
Summit Bank Ltd                  Askari Bank Ltd            Meezan Bank Ltd
Bank Al-falah Ltd

Registered Office/Factory
thPlot # 23/C, 15  Commercial Street Phase II Extension, 

Defence Housing Authority, Karachi.
Phone: (021) 35880771-2  Fax: (021) 35880773
E-mail: leatherup@cyber.net.pk
Web site: leatherupltd.com

Share Registrar Office

M/s C&K Management Associates (Pvt) Limited
404, Trade Tower, Abdullah Haroon Road, 
Near Hotel Metroplole, Karachi-75530

Phone: (021) 35687839- (021) 35685930
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Seventh Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Leather Up 
Limited will be held on Saturday, the October 27, 2018 at 17.00 hours at C-38, Shalimar Garden, Darussalam 
Housing Society, Near Indus Hospital, Korangi, Karachi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1- To read and confirm minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company 
held on Monday, March 26, 2018.

2- To receive and adopt the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 together with 
the Directors' and Auditors report thereon.

3- To appoint auditors for the year 2019 and to fix their remuneration.

4- To elect 7 (seven) Directors as fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company, in accordance with the 
provision of Section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017 for a term of 3 (three) years

 The number of directors fixed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 19, 2018 
pursuant to Section 159 (4) of the Companies Act, 2017 is 7 (seven). The retiring directors are:

1- Mr. Khalid H. Shah  2- Mr. Jazim Shah  3- Mr. Mohsin Khursheed)
4- Mr. S. Faisal Shah  5- Mr. Ali Kausar Khan  6- Ms. Mahmooda Shah
7-  Mr. Farooq Raza

The retiring directors are eligible for re-election.

B. SPECIAL BUSINESS:

To obtain consent of the shareholders in terms of S.R.O. 470(I)/2016 dated May 31, 2016 issued by Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, for the transmission of the annual audited accounts, notices of general 
meetings and other information contained therein of the Company with or through CD or DVD or USB and to pass 
the following resolution with or without modification:

“RESOLVED THAT consent and approval of the members of Leather Up Limited (the “Company”) be and is 
hereby accorded for transmission of annual audited accounts, notices of general meetings and other information 
contained therein of the Company to the members for future years commencing from the year ended June  30, 
2019 through CD or DVD or USB instead of transmitting the same in hard copies”.

A statement under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 pertaining to the Special Business is being sent to 
the members with this notice.

Karachi: October 06, 2018           By order of the Board

         Shafqat Mahmood Khokhar
               Company Secretary
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NOTES:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint another member as a 
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. Proxies in order to be valid must be deposited with the Company not 
less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the meeting.

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 26, 2018 to November 04, 2018, both 
days inclusive.

Shareholders are requested to immediately notify the Company any change in their address and also forward a 
photocopy of the Computerized National Identity Card if not yet furnished at the Office of our Registrar M/s. C & K 
Management Associates (Pvt) Limited, 404, Trade Tower, Abdullah Haroon Roan, Near Hotel Metropole, 
Karachi- 75530.

CDC shareholders or their proxies are required to bring with them original Computerized National Identity Cards or 
Passports along with the participant's I.D. number and their account numbers at the time of attending the Annual 
General Meeting in order to authenticate their identity.

Mandate for E-Dividends for Shareholders:

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with SRO No. 1145(I)/2017 dated 
November 06, 2017, shareholders are MANDATORILY required to provide their bank account details to receive 
their cash dividend directly into their bank accounts instead of receiving it through dividend warrants. 
Shareholders are required to provide relevant details of their bank accounts (i.e. title of account, complete bank 
account number (i.e. 24 digits IBAN), complete mailing address of the bank, name of the bank, folio number, 
mobile number and email address) for payment of cash dividend through electronic mode. As such, the Company 
shall be bound to withhold any dividend declared by the company of those members who do not provide their bank 
details. E-Dividend Mandate Forms are available at the Registered Office of the Company and can be 
downloaded from the Company's website.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement is annexed to the notice of the Twenty Seventh Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of 
Leather Up Limited to be held on 27 October 2018 and sets out the material facts concerning the following Special 
Business to be transacted at the Meeting for approval of shareholders.

Circulation of Annual Report through CD/DVD/USB:

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO No. 470(I)/2016 dated May 31, 2016, 
has allowed listed companies to circulate their Annual Audited Accounts (i.e. the annual balance sheet and profit 
and loss account, auditor's report and director's report) to its members through CD/DVD/USB at their registered 
addresses instead of sending them in hard copies, subject to approval obtained from shareholders in General 
Meeting. Accordingly, approval is hereby sought from members of the Company to comply with the requirements 
of said SRO vide an ordinary resolution.

Subject to the approval of resolution in the AGM, the company will circulate its annual accounts in future through 
CD/DVD/USB. However, members will have the right to request hard copies free of cost at their registered 
addresses after submitting the Standard Request Form which shall be made available on Company website. 
While members who wish to receive hard copies for all future annual audited accounts shall also require to give 
their preference in writing.

The Directors of the Company have no direct or indirect interest in this agenda.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

It is my pleasure to present this report to the shareholders of the Company pertaining to the overall performance 
of the Board of Directors and their effectiveness in guiding the Company towards accomplishing its aims and 
objectives.

Leather Up Limited has implemented a strong governance framework that supports an effective and prudent 
management of business matters, which is regarded as instrumental in achieving the long success of the 
Company.

During the course of the financial year 2017-18, the Board of Directors and its Sub-Committees worked with a 
marked level of diligence and proficiency to best advise and guide the Company towards achieving its potential. 
The Board of Directors as a whole have reviewed the Annual Report and Financial Statements and are pleased 
to confirm that in their view the Annual Report and the Financial Statements taken as a whole, are fair, balanced 
and comprehensive.

An annual self-assessment is carried out to determine the effectiveness and performance of the Board of 
Directors, the integral components of which include, strategic planning, composition, policies and procedures, 
compensation procedures and completeness of information provision. The outcome of this assessment is that 
the Directors feel that the Board of Directors are engaged in strategic matters, has put in place the required 
controls and gets all the necessary information in a timely manner. The Directors further feel that the independent 
Director is equally involved in all decision.    

Karachi: October 05, 2018

چیئرمین کا جائزہ

روں � �   ن� �� � � � � �ل دا  �� � را�� � ا � ر�رٹ � اس �رڈ � ڈا��ز � �� �ر�د� اور � � �� اور �� � �را

.� �� � ��

� � � � �رو�رى ��ت � �� اور ��  ا�م � �� �� �، � � � � �� ��� ��  �ر اپ � � ا� �ط �� �� ورك � �رآ

 رادا � �� �. �� � ا� �دا

ن، �رڈ آف ڈا��ز اور اس � � �ں � اس � �� � �� �� � � � � �رہ اور ر�� �� � � ا� وا�  �� �ل ٢٠١٧-١٨ � دورا

 ن� � � �  � � � اور �رت � �� �م �. �� �ر � ڈا�� �رڈ � ��� ر�رٹ اور �� ��ت � ��ہ � � اور اس �ت � �� �� � � ا

��� ر�رٹ اور �� ��ت �رے �ر � � �، ��، �ازن اور �� �.

�� �� �ى، ��، ��ں اور �� �ر، �و� � �� �ر اور ��ت � �ا� � �. اس � � �����  ء�� �، ا� ڈا��ز، � � �ز� ا�ا
 ز� �م �����  ف�، اس � �� �ول � �ول �� اور �و� ا�ا �� ��ت � �و � � � � ڈا��وں � �س �� � � �رڈ آف ڈا�� ا�

�ورى ��ت �� � �. ڈا��وں � �� �س �� � � �د �ر ڈا�� � � � � �� �.

Jazim Shah
Chairman

�زم �ہ
��

�ا�۔ ٥ ا�� ٢٠١٨



DIRECTORS REPORT

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in submitting their report on audited statements of accounts for 
the year ended June 30, 2018.
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Company Performance 

There has been continuous fall in leather garment exports and its allied products, consequently in production 
since the last couple of months due to problems both at the local and as well as international scenes.

It is rested on record that the historical aspects, boom and decline in the leather industry experienced over the last 
decade and so. The inherent cyclic nature of the fashion world, limitations of the natural raw material, 
extraordinary fluctuation in the prices of raw material (leather skins and bag accessories), the higher cost of 
production per unit in Pakistan has immensely curtailed the potential export business in this industry. 
Furthermore, present conditions besieged by the leather industry globally as well as the loss of priority in terms of 
leather garments on the international scenes.

Despite the best efforts made by the management, the company suffered significant fall in export as well as 
operating profits and consequently in production during the period under review and leaves a lot to be desired.

In rupee term the exports stood at Rs. 51.697 million for the year 2018 as compared to Rs. 133.215 million of the 
last corresponding year. The management of the company is trying its level best to explore new markets to get 
back the company as operational profit making entity. 

It is the history of the Company to take its shareholders into confidence regarding the major issue of the company 
and therefore, for this purpose, the company called upon to shareholders in its extraordinary general meeting held 
on March 26, 2018 obtained approval to sell an open plot of the company, pursuant to section 183(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2017.

Future Out look

The recession grips in Europe in recent period and the impact of low business activity there, automatically affected 
the main exporting countries of leather garments and allied products. Therefore, in the first quarter of 2018-19, 
export orders badly hit and declined export graph. 

30-06-2018 30-06-2017
Rupees  Rupees  

 

Profit before taxation                                                                                              

Taxation                                                                                                                    

Profit after taxation                                                                                                 

Other Comprehensive Income                                                          

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year  

Dividend for the year ended June 30, 2016 

Accumulated  (loss) 

Accumulated profit (loss) brought forward to balance sheet. 

Earnings per share after tax Rs 

45,665,466 

(433,517) 

45,231,949 

1,125,167 

46,357,116 

       --- 

(2,245,787) 

44,111,329 

7.54 

14,376,720 

(1,076,299) 

13,300,421 

795,697 

14,096,118 

(750,000) 

(15,591,906) 

(2,245,787) 

2.22 
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The management is making all out efforts to secure orders and has taken steps to cut operating expenses to 
minimum to withstand any lean period. Subsequent to the year at the first quarter ended September, 2018, the 
company has securing export orders for the year 2018-19 and shipped goods over to Rs. 9.00 million. 
 
The short term borrowing of the company has been paid Rs. 32.50 million out of total Rs. 40.80 million in response 
to sell of open plot.  

Due to applicability of the Companies Act, 2017 certain disclosures of the financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with new enactments and Fourth Schedule.

Human Resource:

At Leather Up, as we are value addition Company, strongly believe that success comes when employees are 

engaged and aligned with the Company's vision. The Company having good relation with the employees and 

continues to make people its focal point by providing the most supportive and conducive environment to all its 

employees and by promoting a culture of high performance, learning, trust and confidence to deliver its products to 

the international markets.

 Human Resource and Remuneration Committee:

In compliance with the requirements of code of corporate governance, the Board of Directors has established this 

Committee comprising three members' and all of three are a non-executive director (including Chairman) who is 

independent director. Detailed terms of reference of the Committee were duly communicated to the members, by 

the Board.

Training Program:

The Board remained fully compliant with the provision with regard to their directors' training program. Out of   total 
of seven directors, three directors have completed the Directors Training Program and one director is exempt from 
training program as mentioned in regulation no. 20, sub-regulation  2 of the Regulation; however exemption from 
the Commission is yet to be obtained.

Appointment of Auditors:

The Auditors, Messrs Ibrahim, Sheikh & Co, Chartered Accountants, retire at the conclusion of the 27th Annual 
General Meeting. As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has been endorsed appointing 
Messrs Abdan & Company, Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Company for the year 2018-19 which has 
been endorsed by the Board.

Corporate and Financial Report Framework:

The Board members are pleased to state that the management of the Company is committed to good corporate 
governance and are complying with best practices.

In compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance, the Directors are pleased to state that: 
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We confirm that:

1. The financial statements have been drawn up in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 
2017 and present fairly state of its affairs, operating results, cash flow and changes in equity.

2. Proper books of accounts have been maintained in the manner required under Companies Act, 2018.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been applied in the preparation of financial statements and accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

4. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation of 
the financial statements.

5. The internal control system is being implemented and monitored.

6. There are no significant doubts about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

7. A summary of key operating and financial data of the Company of last six years is annexed in the annual 
report.

8. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as required by the 
listing regulations.

9. Outstanding duties and taxes, if any, have been disclosed in the financial statements.

10. The share holdings of the sponsors / directors have been shown on individual basis.

11. The Chairman's Review dealing with the performance of the Company during the year ended June 30, 2018 
future prospects and other matters of concern to the Company forms part of this report.

Baord of Directors Meeting:

The number of board meetings held during the year 2017-18 was four. The attendance of the directors is as under:

Name of Directors Number of meeting attended

Mr. Khalid H. Shah

Mr. Mohsin Khursheed

Mr. Jazim Shah

Mr. S. Faisal Shah

Ms. Mahmooda Shah

Mr. Ali Kausar Khan

Mr. Farooq Raza

 

 

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

Remuneration Policy of non-Executive Directors

The fee of the Non-Executive and Independent Directors for attending the Board and Board of Committee 
meetings of the Company is determined by the Board from time to time.

Pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2018 is annexed to this report.

We confirm that Directors and CFO and their spouse and minor children have made no transactions of the 
Company's shares during the year.

The Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is annexed to this report.
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Khalid H. Shah
Chief Executive

Karachi: October 05, 2018  

By order of the Board

The Board of Directors of the Company has decided not to accrue directors' remuneration for the year ended June 
30, 2018. The one executive director has agreed to forgo his part of the remuneration for the year under review in 
the interest of the company. 

The statement showing the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2018 required under the Companies Act, 2017 
and Code of corporate Governance and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding is annexed 
separately.

No trading in company's shares was carried out by its directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, and Head of 
Internal Audit, other Executives and their spouse(s) and minor children.

Workers Management Relation:

The management will like to put on the record valued contribution of all members of the staff, workers towards 
achieving results in general and we wish to place on record our gratitude to the shareholders for their continued 
support in difficult times and hope to continue the same in the coming years. The worker management relation 
remained excellent throughout the year, which resulted in the smooth operation of your company. This is team 
work and we hope it shall continue in the same spirit during the coming years.

Thanks and Appreciation

Thanks to our shareholders for their trust and support now as well as in difficult times.

Board Audit Committee:

An audit committee of the Board has been in existence since the enforcement of the Code of Corporate 
Governance. The audit committee has its terms of reference which were determined by the Board of Directors in 
accordance with the guidelines provided in the listing regulations and code of corporate governance.

The committee meets at least once every quarter and assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, 
primarily in reviewing and reporting financial and non-financial information to shareholders, systems of internal 
control and risk management and to consult directly with the external auditors as considered appropriate. The 
Chief Financial Officer regularly attends the Board Audit Committee meetings by invitation to present the 
accounts. After each meeting, the Chairman of the Committee reports to the Board.

The audit committee comprises of two non-executive directors and one independent director who is also 
Chairman. 

Members Number of meeting attended

Mr. Mohsin Khurshid      

          Ms. Mahmooda Shah      

Mr. Jazim Shah      

 

 

4

4

4



ڈائریکٹر کی رپورٹ

آپ � � � ڈا��ز ٣٠ �ن، ٢٠١٨ � � �� وا� �ل � ا�ؤ� � آڈٹ �دہ ��ت � ا� ر�رٹ � �� � �� ر� �.

� � �ر�د�

 ر�.  ںر� �، � � �� اور � ا��ا� �� دو�ں �� � �� آ�ى �ہ � � �اوا �� �س � �آ�ات اور اس � ا�د�ں � ��ت � � �� �ا

 مدہ � � آ�ى د�� � ا� �ح � �ے � � � �ر� �ؤں، �م اور � � و� �. � � د� � �� ��� ��، �ر� �م �ل � ��ں، �م �ل (�� �  � ر�رڈ � آرا

 ر� �� � ز�دہ � � اس � � �آ�ى �رت � ز�دہ �. �. �� �آں، �� ��ں � �ے �  �� اور � � ا�ء) � �ں � � �� �ازن، ��ن � �اوا

�ے � �ا� � �� د� � � �� � � �ف � ��دہ ��ت اور �� � ��ت � �ن �.

 ر�   ن�اوا ا�� � �� � �� �� وا� �� ��ں � �و�د، � � �آ� � ��ں � � �� �� آ�� �� � �� �� �ا اور � � اس �ت � دورا

�ى اور � � �ڑ د�.

رو� � �ت � �آ�ات رو. اس �ل � �� � �ل ٢٠١٨ � � ٥١٫٦٩٧ � ڈا� �� ا� �ل � ١٣٣٫٢١٥ �. � � ا�م ا� � � � �� � �� � ر� � 

�� � � آ�� �� � ادارے � �ر � وا� �� �� � � � �ر�ں � �ش ��.

� � �

�� دور � �رپ � � �� اور و�ں � �رو�رى ��� � ا�ات، �ے � �ے اور ا�دى ��ت � ا� �آ� �� � �د �د �� �. �ا، ٢٠١٨-١٩ � � � �� 

 اور � �.  ف� �ى �ح �را � �آ� �آ� � � � �آ� �ا

ا�م ا��ت � �ظ �� � � �م �� � ر� � اور � � � � � � �� � � ا�ا�ت � �. �، ٢٠١٨ � ا�� � � �� � �ل � �، � � �ل 

١٩-٢٠١٨ � �آ� �آ� � ا��ت � �ظ � � اور �ل � ��ن � د�. ٩٫٠٠ �.
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�� � � �

�

�� � � �

د� � � آ��

��ل � � �� آ��
� ٣٠ �ن، ٢٠١٦ � � �� وا� �ل � � ����

� (�ن)

�� �� (�ن) � � � آ� ��.

� � � آ�� � �

30-06-201830-06-2017
  

 

45,665,466 

(433,517) 

45,231,949 

1,125,167 

46,357,116 

       --- 

(2,245,787) 

44,111,329 

7.54 

14,376,720 

(1,076,299) 

13,300,421 

795,697 

14,096,118 

(750,000) 

(15,591,906) 

(2,245,787) 

2.22 

رو�رو�



روں � � � �ے � � �رے � ا�د � � � � اور اس و� �، اس � � �، � � ٢٦ �رچ، ٢٠١٨ � � �� وا� �  � � �ر� � � � اس � �ل دا

�� �� � � �� ��رز � ��ت �. � � ا� �ٹ، � � ا�، ٢٠١٧ � � ١٨٣ (٢) � �� � � � �� � �� ادا � � �. �� �ر � 

 ں�ول  ٣٢٫٥٠ �وڑ رو� � �ٹ �و� �� � �اب � ٤٠٫٨٠ � �ں ا�، ٢٠١٧ � در�ا� د�� � و� � ��� ��ت � � ��ت � �� اور ��ا

� �� �ر �.

ا�� و��:

 ف� اور � � � � � � �� �. � �ز�ں � ��  �ے � او�، � � � �ر ا�� � �، اس �ت � زور د� �� � � ��� آ� � � �ز� �و

 م� اس � �م �ز�ں � � � � ز�دہ �د�ر اور �ز�ر ��ل �ا� �� �� اور � ا��ا� �ر�ں � ا� �ر�د�، �، ا�د اور ا�د  ا� �ت ر� � اور �ا

� �� � �وغ د� � ذر� ��ں � ا� ��ى � �� �رى ر� �. .

ا�� و�� اور �و� �:

 ن�� � اور � � � � ا�� ڈا�� (�ل  �ر�ر� �ا� � �ڈ � �ور�ت � ��، �رڈ آف ڈا��ز � اس � � �� � � � � � �ا

د ڈا�� �. � � �ا� � � �ا� � �رڈ � ذر� ار�ن � � � آ�ہ � �. ��) � � آزا

�� �و�ام:

 م� �دى �   م� � � � �ر � � ر� �. �� �ر � �ت ڈا��ز �، � ڈا��ز � ڈا�� �� �و�ا  ن� ڈا��وں � �� �و�ا �رڈ ا

 م� � �. ٢٠، ر�� � ذ� ر�� ٢؛ �� � � �ٹ ا� � �� � � �� �. اور ا� ڈا�� ر�� � � �ن �دہ �� �و�ا

آڈ�وں � �رى:
���� �، ٢٧ ���th �ل ا�س � ا�م � ر��. آڈٹ � � �ف � �� �دہ �ر �، �رڈ آف ڈا��ز � �ر ���� آڈ�، �س ا�ا�، � ا� �، �ر�ڈ ا�ؤ

���� � � �ل ٢٠١٨-١٩ � � آڈ� � �ر � �ر � � � � � �رڈ � �ف � �ر � � �.����  نا� �، �ر�ڈ ا�ؤ �دہ � �ا

�ر�ر� اور ��� ر�رٹ �� ورك:

رہ � اور �� ��ں � �� � � ر� �. �رڈ � ار�ن اس �ت � �ش � � � � ا�م ا� �ر�ر� �� ادا

�ر�ر� �ر� � � � ��، ڈا�� اس �ت � �ش � �:
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�رڈ آڈ� �:

�رڈ � ا� آڈٹ � �ر�ر� �ر� � �ڈ � �� �� � و�د � آ� �. آڈٹ � � اس � � �ا� د� � � �� ڈا��ز اور �ر�ر� �ر� � 

�ڈ � دى � �ا�ت � �� �رڈ آف ڈا��ز � �ف � �ر � � �.

 �� � �رڈ � �و� �� �، �دى �ر � ��� اور � ��� ��ت �  ر�ں �را � � � � ا� �ر � ا� � ��ت �� � اور اس � �ا� � ذ� دا

�ل � �ل، دا� �ول � �م اور �ے � ا�م � �م اور �و� آڈ� � �� �اہ را� �رہ � �ر � �� � �� � . � �� آ� ���� 

� ا�ؤ� � �� � � د�ت � ذر� �رڈ آڈ� � � ا��ں � �� �� �. � � � � � � �� � �رڈ � ر�رٹ �.

د ڈا�� �� � � �� �. آڈٹ � � دو � ا�� ڈا�� اور ا� آزا

� � �اد � �� �ز

٤

٤

 ٤

�م � �ر�

�� �دہ �ہ

�م �� �ہ

� � ڈا�� �رڈ � � � � � ٣٠ �ن، ٢٠١٨ � � �� وا� �ل � � �ا�ت � �و� � � � � ��. ا� ا�� ڈا�� � � � �دات � 

��ہ � � � �ل � � �و� � �ل � �ل �� � ا�ق � �.

� �ن �ں ا�، ٢٠١٧ اور �ر�ر� �ر� � � �ورى � اور � ��� � �ن � �رے � ا�� ��ت ا� ا� � �.

 ن� ��ں اور   ن� �و� اور ا  واو، � � ��ى، اور ا�رو� آڈٹ � ��اہ، د� ا�� اور ا � � � � �� �رت �، اس � ڈا��، � اى او، � ا

�� �ں � �ف � � �.

:� � �� �� �
�
���� ��، � �ؤ اور ��ں � ��ں � � �� ��د �.��� � ��� ��ت �ں � ا�، ٢٠١٧ � �ور�ت � �� �� �� � اور اس � ��ت، 

 رر� � �.  ز� ��ا ا�ؤ� � �� ��ں � �ں ا�، ٢٠١٨ � � �ورى ا�ا

�� ا�ؤ� � ��ں � �� ��ت � �رى � �� � � � اور ا�ؤ� � � �� اور �� � � � �.

� ا��ا� ��� ر�ر� �ر، � � ��ن � �� ا�ق � ��� ��ت � �رى �.

ا�رو� �ول � �م �� � � ر� � اور �ا� � � ر� �.

� �� � �� � �ر � �رى ر� � �� � �رے � �� ا� � � �.
�� � � �ا� و �ا� � �ورت � �� �ر�ر� �ر� � �� ��ں � �� �اد � � �.����

�� دس ��ں � �ى آ�� اور ��� ا�اد و �ر اس ر�رٹ � �� �.



�رڈ � � �

�م �� � �ہ

� ا��

�ا�: ٥ ا�� ٢٠١٨
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�� ��ت � �� �ا� اور �، ا� �� �، ا�ف � � �.

 ن� � �ر�د� � � � � � � ا��ت اور � � ر�رٹ � �رے � �� � د� ��ت � � � د�.       �� ��ہ ٣٠ �ن، ٢٠١٨ � دورا

 ن� �� وا� �رڈ � � � �اد �ر �. ڈا��وں � ��ى ذ� � �: ١٨-٢٠١٧ � دورا

� � �اد � �� ڈار�ز � �م

٤

٤

٤

٤

٤

٤

٤

�م  �� � �ہ

�م � �ر�

�م  �� �ہ

�م � � �ہ

�� �دہ �ہ

�م  � �� �ن

�م  �روق ر�

� ا�� ڈا��وں � �� � ��

د ڈا��وں � � و� � و� �رڈ � ذر� � � �� �. � � �رڈ اور �رڈ آف � � ا��ں � �� � � � ا�� اور آزا

٣٠ �ن، ٢٠١٨ � � ��� � �� اس ر�رٹ � �� � � �.

 ن� � � � �� �ا�� � � �.  ن� �� اور �� � � �ل � دورا  واور ا � اس �ت � �� �� � � ڈا��ز اور � ا� ا

�ر�ر� �ر� � �ڈ � �� � � �ن اس ر�رٹ � �� �.
����� �، ر���� اور �� �، دو�رہ دو�رہ ��ت � � � �� �.���� ��دہ آڈ� ا� / ا�. ا�ا�، � اور �، �ر�ڈ ا�ؤ

�ر�ں � ا�م � �ت:

 ن� � �� �  را� �ر � �� ��، �م �ر � �� �� �� � � �ر�ں اور � � و� � ا ا�� � � � �م ار�ن � ر�رڈ �� �ر �ا� دا

 ر  ہا� � �رى ر�. آ� وا� �ل. �ر� � ر� �رے �ل � ��ا � � � �ل � � ا� �� � ر�رڈ �� �� � اور ا� ر� � � و

 رآ�� � �. � � � �م � اور � ا� ر� � � آ� وا� ��ں � � و� روح � �رى ر� �. ر�، � � و� � آپ � � � �ا

�� اور ��

 ن� ا�د اور �ون � �� �� � و� �. روں � �� ا �رے �ل دا
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PARTICULARS

 

2018

 

2017

 

2016

 

2015

   

2014

 

2013

 

       

FAINANCIAL POSITION

       

      
Paid up Capital

   

60,000,000

   

60,000,000

 

60,000,000

 

60,000,000

 

60,000,000

 

60,000,000

General Reserves

     

1,369,610

     

1,369,610

   

1,369,610

 

1,369,610

 

1,369,610

 

1,369,610

 
Fixed Assets at Cost

   

17,697,066

   

31,288,586

 

30,901,451

 

30,721,451

 

30,584,569

 

28,748,303

Accumulated Depreciation

   

13,745,523

   

13,421,288

 

13,070,959

 

12,722,409

 

12,352,241

 

12,017,983
Current Assets

 

171,609,896

 

114,279,386

 

109,783,542

 

73,513,281

 

62,521,982

 

37,087,304
Current Liabilities

   

67,757,147

   

69,853,605

 

78,318,753

 

53,665,685

 

51,735,409

 

29,257,060

INCOME/REVENUE

 
Sales Revenue

 

51,697,926

 

133,215,713

 

127,715,522

 

114,147,074

 

165,196,180

 

24,087,870

Other Income/(Loss)

 

57,243,338

        

(69,615)

         

6,143

    

74,474

    

(102,269)

 

115,940

 Pre-Tax Profit/ (Loss)

 

45,665,466

   

14,376,720

 

12,269,331

     

9,876,352

 

7,108,905

 

(1,821,922)

Taxation

     

(433,517)

    

(1,076,299)

  

(1,338,808)

   

(1,181,289)

 

(1,665,678)

 

(257,752)

 
PERCENTAGE AND RATIO

 
Pre-Tax (Loss) Profit to sales %

 

88.33

 

10.79

 

9.60

 

8.65

 

4.30

 

(7.56)

 Pre-Tax  Profit (Loss) to Capital %

 

76.11

 

23.96

 

20.39

 

16.46

 

11.85

 

(3.03)

 Current Ratio

 

2.53:1

 

1.64:1

 

1.40:1

 

1.37:1

 

1.21:1

 

1.27:1

 Paid-

 

Up Value per Share

 

10

 

10

 

10

 

10

 

10

 

10

 Earnings (Loss) per Share after Tax (Rs)

 

7.54

 

2.22

 

1.82

 

1.45

 

0.91

 

(0.35)

 Cash Dividend
 

Nil
 

Nil
 

2.5%
 

Nil
 

Nil
 

Nil
 Retained/ (Loss) Earnings per Share (Rs)

 
7.35

 
(0.37)

 
(2.60)

 
(4.35)

 
(5.58)

 
(6.52)

 Break-Up Value per Share
 

17.58
 

9.85
 

7.63
 

5.88
 

4.64
 

3.71
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    PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING (FORM 34)
As at June 30, 2018

 NO. SHARE       TOTAL  

  OF HOLDING      SHARES  
SHOLD 

FROM              TO        HOLD  

  
652

 
1     -

           
100

          
42,418

 

  
578

 
101     -

           
500

         
274,885

 

  
109

 
501     -

          
1000

         
106,552

 

  
112

 
1001     -

          
5000

         
293,613

 

   
23

 
5001     -

         
10000

         
190,000

 

    
9

 
10001     -

         
15000

         
122,800

 

    
6

 
15001     -

         
20000

         
110,500

 

    
1

 
20001     -

         
25000

          
25,000

 

    
6

 
25001     -

         
30000

         
161,500

 

    
1

 

30001     -

         
35000

          
32,000

 

    

3

 

35001     -

         

40000

         

120,000

 

    

1

 

50001     -

         

55000

          

54,000

 

    

1

 

55001     -

         

60000

          

55,500

 

    

2

 

60001     -

         

65000

         

123,208

 

    

2

 

65001     -

         

70000

         

134,524

 

    

2

 

70001     -

         

75000

         

147,700

 

    

1

 

80001     -

         

85000

          

81,100

 

    

1

 

85001     -

         

90000

          

89,000

 

    

1

 

90001     -

         

95000

          

92,000

 

    

2

 

95001     -

        

100000

         

198,800

 

    

1

 

195001     -

        

200000

         

200,000

 

    

1

 

235001     -

        

240000

         

240,000

 

    

2

 

295001     -

        

300000

         

600,000

 

    

1

 

345001     -

        

350000

         

345,400

 

    

1

 

760001     -

        

765000

         

760,100

 

    

1

 

1395001     -

       

1400000

       

1,399,400

 

 
 

  

1520

                    

Total

       

6,000,000

 

 

         

CATAGORIES

     

NUMBER

     

TOTAL

   

 

S/R

             

OF

       

OF

    

SHARES

   

PERCENTAGE %

 

 

NO.

        

SHARE HOLDERS

  

SHARE HOLDERS

    

HOLD

   

 

1

 

INDIVIDUALS

 

1507

 

5,934,720

 

98.91

 

 

2

 

INVESTMENT COMPANIES

 

1

         

3,700

 

0.06

 

 

3

 

JOINT STOCK COMPANIES

 

11

      

60,580

 

1.01

 

 

4

 

MUTUAL FUND

 

1

        

1,000

 

0.02

 
1520 6,000,000 100.00
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SR 
#   FOLIO     NAME OF COMPANIES 

 
HOLDING

 
 PER 

%  CATAGORIES 

01 14670-000020 MULTILINE SECURITIES (PVT) LTD 30000   0.50 
JOINT STOCK 
COMPANIES 

02 03277-001339 PREMIER FASHIONS (PVT) LTD 18000   0.30 
JOINT STOCK 
COMPANIES 

03
 

16857-000026 MRA SECURITIES LIMITED -
 
MF

 
6500

   
0.11

 

JOINT STOCK 
COMPANIES

 

04 05861        M/S INVESTMENT CORPORATION 3700   0.06 
INVESTMENT 
COMPANIES 

05
 

01669-000026 SHAFFI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED
 

2500
   

0.04
 

JOINT STOCK 
COMPANIES

 

06 05736-000015 NCC - PRE SETTLEMENT DELIVERY ACCOUNT 1000   0.02 
JOINT STOCK 
COMPANIES 

07
 

16410-000029 ABA ALI HABIB SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 
- 

MF 1000
   

0.02
 MUTUAL FUND

 

08 16980-000021 ASDA SECURITIES (PRIVATE) LIMITED - MF 1000   0.02 
JOINT STOCK 
COMPANIES 

09 03293-000038 S.H. BUKHARI SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED 500   0.01 
JOINT STOCK 
COMPANIES 

10 

06999-000022 MUHAMMAD AHMED NADEEM SECURITIES 
(SMC-PVT) LIMITED 500   0.01 

JOINT STOCK 
COMPANIES 

11 16691-000026 ROYAL SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 500   0.01 
JOINT STOCK 
COMPANIES 

12
 

06288-000028 UNITED CAPITAL SECURITIES PVT. LTD.
 

79
   

0.00
 

JOINT STOCK 
COMPANIES

 

13
 

03525-087235 MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED
 

1
   

0.00
 

JOINT STOCK 
COMPANIES
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
 

 
                            Number of               Number of  

                      Shareholder               Share Held 

Associated Companies (name wise details) 
NIT & ICP (name wise details) 
 
Directors CEO and their Spouse and minor children 
(Name wise detail) 
 

       

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
Executives        

Public Sector companies & corporation    

       
 

Mr. Khalid H. Shah

Mr. Syed Raza Shah

Mr. Farooq Raza

Ms. Mahmooda Shah

Mr. Jazim Shah

Mr. S. Faisal Shah

Mr. Nazeer Shah

Mr. Zain Shah

Mrs. Naheed Parveen Fayyaz

Mr. Ali Kausar Khan

Mohsin Khursheed

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

-

-

1,639,400   

300,000

 100

100

100

100

  760,100

 300,000

        100

   60,708

    500
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

With the Code of Corporate Governance for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Leather Up Limited (“the Company”) has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (“the Regulations”) in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
 a)  Male:   Six
 b)  Female:  One

2. The composition of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) is as follows:

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, 
including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of 
the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they 
were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by 
the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act”) 
and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by 
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations 
with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the board.

8. The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

Category Names

 

 

Mr. Mohsin Khursheed

Ms. Mahmooda Shah

Mr. Jazim Shah

Mr. S. Faisal Shah

Mr. Farooq Raza

Mr. Ali Kausar Khan

Mr. Khalid H. Shah *

Independent Director

Other Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors *

*  The Chief Executive of the Board is an Executive Director.
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Khalid H. Shah
Chief Executive

Jazim Shah
Chairman

9. The Board remained fully compliant with the provision with regard to their directors' training program. Out of   
total of seven directors, three directors have completed the Directors Training Program and one director is 
exempt from training program as mentioned in regulation no. 20, sub-regulation 2 of the Regulation; 
however exemption from the Commission is yet to be obtained.

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal 
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regulations.

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval 
of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

 a. Audit Committee
  i. Mr. Mohsin Khursheed-Chairman
  ii. Mr. Jazim Shah
  iii. Ms. Mahmooda Shah

 b. HR and Remuneration Committee
  i. Mr. Mohsin Khursheed-Chairman
  ii. Mr. S. Faisal Shah
  iii. Ms. Mahmooda Shah

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the aforesaid committees were as following:

 a. Audit Committee: Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2018
 b. HR and Remuneration Committee: Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 

2018

15. The Board has set up effective internal audit functions that are considered suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under 
the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (“the ICAP”) and 
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses 
and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance 
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17.  The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the 
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Karachi: October 5, 2018
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REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 

Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Leather Up Limited 

(the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the 

Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's 

compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-

compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the 

Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the 

Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 

and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not 

required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls 

or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance 

procedures and risks. The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 

recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, 

its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the 

Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent 

of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit 

Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for 

identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's 

length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 

Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the 

requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the code as reflected in 

the notes in the statement of compliance.

 Note reference   Description    Non-Compliance 
i) 9    Directors Training  Exemption not obtained from 

         Securities and Exchange     

         Commission of Pakistan

Karachi.
Date: October 05, 2018

Ibrahim, Shaikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner Imran Ahmed Zaki FCA

I B R A H I M , S H A I K H & C O
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

259-260, Panorama Centre, Fatima Jinnah Road, Karachi-74400. Tel: +92-21-35210577 - 35673529 - 35671853 Fax: +92-21-35676591
Email: ibrahimshaikh41@yahoo.com Other Office: Lahore
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF LEATHER UP LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Leather Up Limited (the Company), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of  
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and we state that we have  obtained all  the information and  explanations which, to 
the best of  our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, the statement of 
financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of  comprehensive income, the statement of changes 
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the 
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2018 and of the profit  the comprehensive income, the changes 
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.

I B R A H I M , S H A I K H & C O

259-260, Panorama Centre, Fatima Jinnah Road, Karachi-74400. Tel: +92-21-35210577 - 35673529 - 35671853 Fax: +92-21-35676591
Email: ibrahimshaikh41@yahoo.com Other Office: Lahore
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Following are the Key Audit Matters:

S. No. Key Audit Matters

  (i)      First time application of third and   
           fourth schedules to the Companies 
           Act, 2017
 As referred to in note 2.6 to the  annexed financial 

statements, the third and fourth schedules to the 
Companies Act, 2017 became applicable for the 
first time for the preparation of the Company's 
annual financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2018.

 The Companies Act, 2017 (including third and 
fourth schedules) forms an integral part of the 
statutory financial reporting framework as 
applicable to the Company and amongst others, 
prescribes the nature and content of disclosures 
in relation to various elements of the financial 
statements.

 As part of this transition to the requirements of the 
said third and fourth schedules, the management 
performed a gap analysis to identify differences 
between the previous reporting framework and 
the current reporting framework and as a result 
assessed the amendments (as specified in the 
said note 2.6 relating to disclosures required in 
the Company's financial statements.

 We consider it as a key audit matter in view of the 
impacts in the financial statements due to the 
Companies Act, 2017.

(ii)      Revenue Recognition
 Refer     note   13   to    the   financial        

statements and the accounting policy in Note   
3.11 to the financial statements regarding the   
sale  of goods.

 The company generate revenue from sale of   
100% goods to export  customers

 
 We identified recognition of revenue (against 

sale of goods) as a key audit matter because 
revenue is one of the performance indicator of 
the Company which gives rise to an inherent risk 
of the existence and the accuracy of the revenue.

How the matter was addressed in our audit.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Considering the management's process to identify the 
necessary amendments required in the Company's 
financial statements.

Evaluating the results of management's analysis and 
key decisions taken in respect of the transition, using our 
knowledge of the relevant requirements of the third and 
fourth schedules to the Companies Act, 2017 and our 
understanding of the Company's  operations and 
business.

Assessing the adequacy and appropriateness of the 
additional disclosures and changes to the previous 
disclosures made in the annexed financial statements 
based on the new requirements.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Obtain understanding of the processes relating to the 
recognition of revenue and accessing the design, 
implementation and operating effectiveness of the key 
internal control over the recording of revenue.

Comparing the sample of revenue transactions 
recognized during the year with the sale invoices, 
delivery orders, export record and other relevant 
documentations, and

Comparing a sample of revenue transactions recorded 
around the year end with the sale invoices, delivery 
orders, export record and other relevant underlying 
documentations to access if the related revenue is 
recorded in the appropriate accounting period.  

I B R A H I M , S H A I K H & C O

259-260, Panorama Centre, Fatima Jinnah Road, Karachi-74400. Tel: +92-21-35210577 - 35673529 - 35671853 Fax: +92-21-35676591
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

I B R A H I M , S H A I K H & C O
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involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.39

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

(a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 
(XIX of 2017);

(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of   comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes 

I B R A H I M , S H A I K H & C O
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IBRAHIM, SHAIKH & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
KARACHI.
DATE: OCTOBER 05, 2018

thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in 
agreement with the books of account and returns;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Company's business; and

(d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance,1980 (XVIII of 1980),

      Other Matter

 The financial statements of LEATHER UP LIMITED for the year ended June 30, 2017 were audited by 
another firm of Chartered Accountants who expressed an un modified opinion on those statements on 
October 06, 2017.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Imran Ahmed Zaki.

I B R A H I M , S H A I K H & C O
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Khalid H. Shah

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

Chief Executive
Jazim Shah
Chairman

Shafqat Mahmood
Chief Financial Officer

          

JUNE 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

Non - Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 4 3,951,543

         

17,867,298

       

Current Assets

Stock in trade 5 95,415,855

       

101,096,159

     

Trade debts - considered good -

                    

-

                   

Advances, deposits, prepayments 

and other receivables 6 39,856,480

       
10,660,241

       

Cash and bank balances 7 36,337,561
       

2,522,986
         

171,609,896
     

114,279,386
     

175,561,439
     

132,146,684
     

Share Capital and Reserves

Authorized Capital

60,000,000       60,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 8 60,000,000
       

60,000,000

General reserve 1,369,610
         

1,369,610

Accumulated gain/ (loss) 44,111,329
       

(2,245,787)
        105,480,939

     
59,123,823

Deferred liability - staff gratuity 9 2,323,354

         

3,169,256

         
Current liabilities

Short term borrowing - secured 10 40,800,000

       

19,500,664

       
Loan from directors 2,015,356

         

129,856

            
Trade and other payables 11 21,707,296

       

46,376,523

       
Accrued markup 186,986

            

156,272

            

Unclaimed dividend 2,613,991

         

2,613,991

         

Provision for taxation 433,517

            

1,076,299

         

67,757,146

       

69,853,605

       
Contingencies and commitments 12 -

                    

-

                   

175,561,439 132,146,684

The annexed notes form integral part of these financial statements

Rupees

6,000,000 (June 30, 2017: 6,000,000) ordinary 

 shares of Rs. 10/- each        
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PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Khalid H. Shah
Chief Executive

Shafqat Mahmood
Chief Financial Officer

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

Sales - net 13 51,697,926        133,215,713      
Cost of sales 14 (50,201,059)      (101,861,314)    
Gross profit 1,496,867          31,354,399        

Operating expenses

Administrative expenses 15 (4,774,759)        (4,922,325)        
Distribution cost 16 (3,266,911)        (8,702,954)        

(8,041,670)        (13,625,279)      

Operating profit / (loss) (6,544,803)        17,729,120        

Finance cost 17 (1,298,626)        (1,763,259)        

Other income/(loss) 18 57,243,338        (69,615)             

Other operatng expenses 19 (3,734,443)        (1,519,526)        

52,210,269        (3,352,400)        

Profit before taxation 45,665,466        14,376,720        

Taxation 20 (433,517)           (1,076,299)        

Rupees

For the year ended

Profit after taxation 45,231,949        13,300,421        

7.54                  2.22                  

The annexed notes form integral part of these financial statements

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Jazim Shah
Chairman
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Khalid H. Shah
Chief Executive

Shafqat Mahmood
Chief Financial Officer

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

Profit after taxation 45,231,949        13,300,421        

For the year ended

Rupees

Profit after taxation 45,231,949        13,300,421        

Other comprehensive income for the period 1,125,167          795,697             

Total comprehensive income for the period 46,357,116        14,096,118        

The annexed notes form integral part of these financial statements

Jazim Shah
Chairman
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

         

      
      Khalid H. Shah

Chief Executive
Shafqat Mahmood

Chief Financial Officer

JUNE 30, 2018 JUNE 30, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 45,665,466 14,376,720

Adjustments for non cash and other items:

Depreciation 324,235

            

350,328

            

Provisioin for gratuity 279,265

            

447,376

            

Gain on sale of land non depreciable assets (58,302,480)

      

-

                   

Finance cost 1,298,626

         

1,763,259

         

(56,400,354)

      

2,560,963

         

Operating cashflows before working capital changes (10,734,888)

      

16,937,683

       

Changes in working capital

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stock in trade 5,680,304

         

(18,000,953)

      

Trade debts -

                    

4,791,140

         

Advances, deposit, prepayments and other recievable (1,053)

               

5,526,708

         

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables (24,669,227)

      

(5,904,884)

        

Loan from directors 1,885,500

         

25,310

             

(17,104,476) (13,562,679)

Cash (used in) / generated from operations (27,839,364) 3,375,004

Taxes  paid (551,485)

           

(1,407,115)

        

Finance cost paid (1,267,912)

        

(1,756,987)

        

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (29,658,761)

      

210,902

            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Addition to property, plant and equipment (106,000)
           

(387,135)
           

Receipt against sale of lease hold land 42,280,000
       

-
                   

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 42,174,000
       

(387,135)
           

Net cashflow from financing activities

Dividend paid -
                    

(436,389)
           -

                    
(436,389)

           
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,515,239

       

(612,622)

           
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period (16,977,678)

      

(16,365,057)

      
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (4,462,439)

        

(16,977,679)

      Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Cash and bank balance 36,337,561

       

2,522,986

         

Short term borrowing (40,800,000) (19,500,664)
(4,462,439) (16,977,678)

The annexed notes form integral part of these financial statements

Rupees

Jazim Shah
Chairman
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Khalid H. Shah
Chief Executive

Shafqat Mahmood
Chief Financial Officer

Share General Accumulated

Capital Reserve Loss Total

Balance as at July 1, 2016 60,000,000

    

1,369,610

      

(15,591,906)

      

45,777,705

    

-
                 

-
                 

(750,000)
           

(750,000)
        

-
                 

-
                 

13,300,421
        

13,300,421
    

795,697             795,697         

60,000,000    1,369,610      (2,245,787)        59,123,823    

Balance as at July 1, 2017 60,000,000    1,369,610      (2,245,787)        59,123,823    

 Rupees

Profit after Taxation

Balance as at June 30, 2017

Dividend for the year ended June 30, 
2016

Other Comprenhensive income

Balance as at July 1, 2017 60,000,000    1,369,610      (2,245,787)        59,123,823    

45,231,949
        

45,231,949
    

1,125,167

          
1,125,167

      

60,000,000

    

1,369,610

      

44,111,329

        

105,480,939

  

The annexed notes form integral part of these financial statements

Profit after Taxation

Balance as at June 30, 2018

Other Comprenhensive income

Jazim Shah
Chairman
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 Leather Up Limited ("the Company") was incorporated as a private limited company under the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 on December 2, 1990 vide registration no. K-02440 of 1990-91. Subsequently the Company 
was converted into a public limited Company on May 15, 1993 .The Company is listed on Karachi Stock 
Exchange (now Pakistan Stock Exchange) since 1994. The Company is engaged in the manufacture and 
export of leather garment products. The registered office and its production facilities are located at plot # 
23/C, 15th Commercial Street Phase II Extension Defence Housing Authority, Karachi. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

 2.1 Statement of Compliance

  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan 
comprise of: 

   - International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

   -  Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017;

    Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the 
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have 
been followed.

 2.2  Summary of significant events and transactions that affected the company's financial 
position and  performance

  -The export sales revenue of the company has been reduced significantly from Rs. 133.21/- million 
to Rs. 51.70/- million during financial year of 2017 to 2018 i.e by 61.2%;

  -The company has sold open plot at Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi having book value of Rs. 
13.697/- million for Rs. 72.00/- million;

  -Due to applicability of the Companies Act, 2017 certain disclosures of the financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with new enactments and Fifth Schedule;

  -The exchange rate of USD to PKR has increased from PKR 104.58 as at June 30, 2017 to PKR 
123.85 as at June, 30, 2018,

 2.3  Basis of measurement

  These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless 
otherwise specifically stated.

 2.4  Functional and presentation currency

  These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the functional and 
presentation currency of the Company.
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 2.5  Use of estimates and judgments

  The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards  
requires the management to make the judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other 
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the 
basis of making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

  The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods. Areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as 
follows: 

  a)   Provision for taxation
  b)   Provision for obsolete inventory 
  c)   Residual values and useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment
  d)   Provision of slow moving and obsolete stores and spares
  e)   Provision for staff gratuity

 2.6   Standards, amendments or interpretations which became effective during the current year

  The third and fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 became applicable to the Company for the 
first time for the preparation of these financial statements. The Companies Act, 2017 (including its 
third and fifth schedule) form an integral part of the statutory financial reporting framework applicable 
to the Company and amongst others, prescribes the nature and content of diclosures in relation to 
various elements of the financial statements.   The other amendments to published standards and 
interpretations that were mandatory for the Comopany's financial year ended June 30, 2018 are 
considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's financial reporting 
and therefore not disclosed in these financial statements.

 2.7 New / revised accounting standards, amendments to published accounting standards, and 
interpretations that are not yet effective

 IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (Amendments) January 1, 2018
 IFRS 9 Financial instruments (Amendments) January 1, 2018
 IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts and customers July 1, 2018
 IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019
 IFRS 4 Insurance contracts (Amendments) January 1, 2018
 IAS 40 Investment property (Amendments) January 1, 2018
 IAS 19 Employee benefits (Amendments) January 1, 2019
 IAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures (Amendments) January 1, 2019
 IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration  January 1, 2018
 IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments January 1, 2019

  The company expects that the adoption of the above amendments and itnerpretations will not affect 
its financial statements in the period of initial application, except for IFRS-15 Revenue from contracts 
with customers. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the said standard.
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  In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to the various accounting 
standards have also been issued by IASB in December 2016 and December 2017. Such 
improvements  are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2018 
and January 01, 2019 respectively. The company expects that such improvements to the standards 
will not have any impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

  The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framwork for Financial Reporting ( the 
Conceptual Framework) in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 01, 2020 for preperation of financial statements who develop accounting policies based on 
the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework is not standard, and none of 
concepts overide those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the 
Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing standards, to help prepares develop 
consistent accounting policies if there is no application standard in place and to assist all parties to 
understand and interpret the standard.

  Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP 
for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan

 Standard or Interpretation Effective Date 
   (annual periods beginning on or after)

 IFRS 14   Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 1, 2016
 IFRS17   Insurance Contracts January 1, 2021

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 3.1 Property, plant and equipment

  These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Depreciation  is 
charged to profit & loss account applying the reducing balance method whereby the cost of an asset 
is written off over its useful life at the rates specified in note 4 to the financial statements. 
Depreciation on additions is charged from the quarter in which an asset is put to use and no 
depreciation charged in the quarter in which asset is disposed off.

  Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognized as a separate assets, 
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

  Gains and losses on disposal of assets, if any, are taken to the profit and loss account.

  The assets' residual values, useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial 
year end. The Company's estimate of residual value of property and equipment as at June 30, 2018 
did not require any adjustment as its impact is considered insignificant.

  An item of property, plant and equipments is derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of 
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset) is included in the profit and loss account in the year in which the asset is derecognized.

 3.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

  Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of these 
assets exceed their recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss 
account.
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 3.3 Stock in trade
  Raw materials are valued at average cost and finished goods are valued at  lower  of  average  cost 

and net realizable value.

  Work-in-process is valued at average cost of raw-materials including a  proportionate of 
manufacturing overheads.

  Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

  Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving inventory based on 
management's best estimate regarding there future usability.

 3.4 Stores, spares and chemicals

  Stores, spares and loose tools excluding items in transit are valued at lower of average cost and net 
realizable value. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items.

  Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon 
accumulated to the balance sheet date.

  Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

  Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving inventory based on 
management's best estimate regarding there future usability.

 3.5 Trade and other receivables

  Trade and other receivables are carried at original invoice amount/cost, which is the fair value of the 
consideration to be received, less an estimate made for doubtful receivables which is determined 
based on management review of outstanding amounts and previous repayment pattern. Balance 
considered bad and irrevocable are written off.

 3.6 Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash in hand and at banks, short term bank deposits and short term running finances, if any, are 
carried at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash 
in hand and deposits in bank, net of short term running finances ( if any ) that are highly liquid in 
nature, readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risks of changes 
in value.

 3.7 Financial Instruments

  3.7.1  Classification

    The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through 
profit or loss, held to maturity, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale. The 
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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    a)   Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
     Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. 

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of 
selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading unless 
they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current 
assets.

    b)   Loans and receivables
     Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, 
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. 
These are classified as non-current assets. The Company's loans and receivables 
comprise 'trade debts', 'proceed receivable', 'short term loans', 'trade deposits and 
other receivables' and 'cash and cash equivalents' in the balance sheet.

    c)   Held to maturity financial assets
     Held to maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 

determinable payments and fixed maturity with a positive intention and ability to hold to 
maturity. There were no held to maturity financial assets at the reporting date.

    d)  Available-for-sale financial assets

     Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this 
category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose off it 
within 12 months of the end of the reporting date. There were no available for sale 
financial asset at the reporting date.

  3.7.2  Recognition and measurement

    Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date – the 
date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially 
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair 
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss 
account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. 
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.

  3.7.3  Impairment of financial assets

    The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective 
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such 
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss is removed from 
equity and recognised in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognised in the 
profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss 
account. Impairment testing of trade debts and other receivables is described in note 3.5.



Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2018

38

 3.8 Staff Retirement Benefits

  The main features of the schemes operated by the company for its employees are as follows:

  3.8.1Defined benefit plan

  A defined benefit plan is post employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.  The 
company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of 
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior periods. The 
Gratuity scheme is unfunded and covers those permanent employees and management staff of the 
Company who have completed prescribed qualifying period of service.  Provision is made annually 
to cover obligations under the scheme by providing two third of last drawn basic salary of the 
employees for each year of service.

  Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested. For 
non-vested benefits past service cost is amortized on the straight line basis over the average period 
until the amended benefits become vested.

 3.9 Taxation

  The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and 
loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity respectively.

  Current

  The current income tax charge is based on the taxable income for the year calculated on the basis of 
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous years.  Presently provision for current taxation is based on final tax 
regime in accordance with the provisions of section 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

  Deferred

  Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet liability method, providing for all temporary 
differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes.  Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 
to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

  A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realized.

  Currently there are no deferred tax balances since the Company income falls under final tax regime.
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 3.10 Provisions

  Provision is recognized when, as a result of past event, the company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Subsequently, provisions are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

 3.11 Revenue Recognition

  Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of any direct expenses. Revenue is 
recognised on the following basis:

  - Sales revenue is recognized on dispatch of goods to customers.

  - Rebate income is recognized on accrual basis.

  - Markup / interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis that takes into account the 
effective yield.

 3.12 Borrowing costs
  
  Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except 

borrowing costs that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are capitalized as a part of the cost of that asset.

 3.13 Foreign currency transaction and translation
  
  Foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the 

date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated into reporting currency equivalents using year-end spot foreign exchange rates. Non-
monetary assets are translated using exchange rates that existed when the values were 
determined. Exchange differences on foreign currency translations are included in income directly.
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4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Lease hold 

Land

Building on lease 

hold land 

Plant and 

Machinery 
Vehicles 

Furniture and 

fixture

Office 

equipment
Total

As at July 1, 2016

Cost 14,797,520

     

6,749,315

              

4,510,352

             

164,365

       

1,295,136

        

3,384,763

      

30,901,451

        

Accumulated depreciation -

                  

(5,938,510)

             

(3,401,179)

            

(81,173)

        

(923,163)

          

(2,726,934)

     

(13,070,959)

       

Net book value 14,797,520

     

810,805

                 

1,109,173

             

83,192

         

371,973

           

657,830

         

17,830,492

        

Year ended June 30, 2017

Opening net book value 14,797,520

     

810,805

                 

1,109,173

             

83,192

         

371,973

           

657,830

         

17,830,492

        

Additions / transfers  during the

    year -

                  

-

                        

387,135

                

-

               

-

                   

-

                

387,135

             

Disposals / transfers

    Cost -

                  

-

                        

-

                        

-

               

-

                   

-

                

-

                     

    Accumulated depreciation -

                  

-

                        

-

                        

-

               

-

                   

-

                

-

                     

    Net book value -

                  

-

                        

-

                        

-

               

-

                   

-

                

-

                     

Depreciation for the year -

                  

(81,080)

                 

(149,631)

               

(16,638)

        

(37,197)

            

(65,783)

         

(350,328)

            

Closing net book value 14,797,520

     

729,725

                 

1,346,677

             

66,554

         

334,776

           

592,047

         

17,867,298

        

As at July 01, 2017

Cost 14,797,520

     

6,749,315

              

4,897,487

             

164,365

       

1,295,136

        

3,384,763

      

31,288,586

        

Accumulated depreciation -

                  

(6,019,590)

             

(3,550,810)

            

(97,811)

        

(960,360)

          

(2,792,717)

     

(13,421,288)

       

Net book value 14,797,520

     

729,725

                 

1,346,677

             

66,554

         

334,776

           

592,046

         

17,867,298

        Year ended June 30, 2018

Opening net book value 14,797,520

     

729,725

                 

1,346,677

             

66,554

         

334,776

           

592,046

         

17,867,298

        Additions / transfers  during the

    year -
                  

-
                        

-
                        

-
               

-
                   

106,000
         

106,000
             

Disposals / transfers

    Cost 13,697,520     -                        -                        -               -                   -                13,697,520        

    Accumulated depreciation -
                  

-
                        

-
                        

-
               

-
                   

-
                

-
                     

    Net book value 13,697,520
     

-
                        

-
                        

-
               

-
                   

-
                

13,697,520
        

Depreciation for the year -

                  

(72,973)

                 

(134,668)

               

(13,311)

        

(33,478)

            

(69,805)

         

(324,235)

            

Closing net book value 1,100,000

       

656,752

                 

1,212,009

             

53,243

         

301,298

           

628,241

         

3,951,543

          

As at June 30, 2018

Cost 1,100,000

       

6,749,315

              

4,897,487

             

164,365

       

1,295,136

        

3,490,763

      

17,697,066

        

Accumulated depreciation -

                  

(6,092,563)

             

(3,685,478)

            

(111,122)

      

(993,838)

          

(2,862,522)

     

(13,745,523)

       

Net book value 1,100,000

       

656,752

                 

1,212,009

             

53,243

         

301,298

           

628,241

         

3,951,543

          

Annual rates of depreciation -

                  

10% 10% 20% 10% 10%

Rupees 



2018 2017

4.2 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as under :

Cost of sales 194,541

           

210,197

           

Administrative expenses 129,694

           

140,131

           

324,235

           

350,328

           

5 STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material and accessories       85,637,912 88,194,092

      

Finished goods       12,190,264 15,314,388

      

Less: Provision for obsolete stock (2,412,321)

       

(2,412,321)

       

95,415,855

      

101,096,159

    

2018 2017

6 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS  AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances - considered good to :

Rupees

Rupees

Advances - considered good to :

- Staff 1,444,933

        

283,519

           

- Suppliers -

                   

-

                   

1,444,933

        

283,519

           

Deposits 199,167

           

199,167

           

Prepayments -

                   

89,449

             

Receivable against sale of property 29,720,000

      

-

                   

Income tax 1,333,861

        

1,858,675

        

Sales tax 2,474,832

        

2,398,578

        

Other receivables - considered good

- Export rebate receivable 4,683,687

        

5,830,853

        

- Others -

                   

-

                   

4,683,687

        

5,830,853

        

39,856,480

      

10,660,241

      

7 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 11,222

             

144,190

           

Cash with banks

- in foreign currency deposit accounts 133,713

           

101,206

           

- In current accounts 36,192,626

      

2,277,590

        

36,326,339

      

2,378,796

        

36,326,339

      

2,378,796

        

36,337,561

      

2,522,986

        

8 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2017

2017

5,759,100
      

57,591,000
      

57,591,000
      

125,000
      

1,250,000
        

1,250,000
        

115,900      1,159,000        1,159,000        

6,000,000      60,000,000      60,000,000      

2018

2018 Rupees

5,759,100
               

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in
cash.

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each issued as
fully paid bonus shares.

6,000,000     

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each issued for
consideration other than cash.

115,900                  

125,000
                  

Number of Shares

  4.1.1 The shareholders at extra ordinary general meeting held on 26 March 2018 approved the 
disposal of 4,400 square yard open plot at Korangi Induatrial Area, Karachi. The disposal was 
made through open tender against which the agreement was made on  May 10, 2018.  The 
plot was sold for Rs. 72 million against book value of Rs. 13.698 million resulting in gain of Rs. 
58.3 million.
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Number of 

shares

Percentage 

of holding

Number of 

shares

Percentage 

of holding

Khalid Shah 1,639,400

     

27.32%

Syed Raza Shah 300,000

        

5.00%

Farooq Raza 100

              

0.00%

Mahmooda Shah 100

              

0.00%

Jazim Shah 100

              

0.00%

S.Faisal Shah 100

              

0.00%

Nazeer Shah 760,100

        

12.67%

Zain Shah 300,000

        

5.00%

Naheed Parveen Fayyaz100 0.00%

Ali Kausar Khan 60,708 1.01%

Mohsin Khursheed 500 0.01%

Shafqat Mahmood 13,800 0.23%

1,639,400

     
300,000

        
100

              

100

              

100

              

100

              

760,100

        

300,000

        

100

60,708

500

13,800

27.32%

5.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

12.67%

5.00%

0.00%

1.01%

0.01%

0.23%

-------- 2018 -------- -------- 2017 --------

8.1 Shares held by the related parties of the Company

2017

9 DEFERRED LIABILITIES - Gratuity

As at beginning of the year 3,169,256

        

3,517,577

        Charged to Profit & Loss 279,265

           

447,376

           

2018

Rupees

Charged to Profit & Loss 279,265

           

447,376

           Actuarial (gain) loss during the year (1,125,167)

       

(795,697)

          
As at end of the year 2,323,354

        

3,169,256

        
9.1

    

Charged to profit & loss

Current Service Cost 136,179

           

202,407

           
Interest Cost 143,086

           

244,969

           
279,265

           

447,376

           
Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized during the year (1,125,167)

       

(795,697)

          
(845,902)

          

(348,321)

          2017

9.2

    

The Charge to profit & loss account has been allocated as follow

Administrative Expenses                66,019              104,893 

Production Expenses              213,246              342,483 

             279,265              447,376 

9.3

    

2018

Rupees

Present value of defined benefit obligation has been determined using projected unit credit method.
The liability as at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 has been determined by the management of the
company based on actuarial valuation. The principal assumptions used in determining present value of

Discount rate 7% 7%

Expected rate of increase in salary 4% 4%

expected average years of service  39 years  39 years 

Historical Information

Present value of defined benefit obligation           2,323,354           3,169,256 

actuarial adjustments arising during the year 48.22% 11.51%

The experience adjustment component of actuarial adjustment is impracticable to determine and thus
has not been disclosed.

company based on actuarial valuation. The principal assumptions used in determining present value of
defined benefit obligations are:
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10 SHORT TERM BORROWING - Secured 2017

Export refinance

Preshipment financing Part II 40,800,000      18,500,000      

Post shipment financing- Bai Salam -                   1,000,664        

40,800,000      19,500,664      

10.1 United Bank Limited

Rs. _Nil_        million (2017: Rs. Nil)

Preshipment Financing Part II Rs. _8.30___ million (2017: Rs. 8.3 million)

Postshipment Financing Rs. __Nil____ million (2017: Rs. Nil)

Rate of markup

Security :

2018

Rupees

The above balances represent secured short term loan utilized under markup arrangements with financial

institution against securities which are as under:

SBP Export Finance Rate + 1% per annum (2017: SBP + 1%)

Pre-Post shipment Financing Part I

Sanctioned limit Rs. 15.00 million

- Registered mortgage for token amount of Rs. 0.1 million. 

- Lien on export documents.

- Personal Guarantees of all seven directors.

- Equitable mortgage charge registered for Rs. 42.30 million over factory land, building and machinery
equipment installed or to be installed with all present and future construction, fixture, fittings over
property no. 23-C, 15th Commercial Street, Phase II, DHA, Karachi.

- First hypothecation charge of Rs. 42.30 million over stocks of raw material & leather garments
(finished & Un-finished), all plant, machinery, equipments, stores with furniture and fixture, lying /
belonging to the Company installed or to be installed at factory Plot no. 23-C, 15th Commercial Street
Phase II, DHA Karachi duly insured with coverage of risks of fire, burglary & RSD with UBL name as
loss payee with 25 % margin for drawing power.

- Stock are under full control of the Company. The Company is required to keep adequate quantity of
stocks as per stock report for which the Company took the finance from the bank .

10.2 Meezan Bank Limited

Rs 7.50 million (2017: Rs. 10.20 million)

Bai-Salam Rs. _Nil  million (2017: Rs. 1.00 million)

Rate of markup

Murabaha under IERF Part I & II 

SBP Export Finance Rate + 1% per annum (2017: SBP + 1%)

Sanctioned limit Rs. 16.70 million

43
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Security :

- Debit authority for entire tenure be provided.

- Registration of MBL first charge over current assets (Stocks ) of Rs. 6.00 million.

- Personal guarantee of all directors and mortagagers.

- 1st exclusive charge over fixed assets amounting to Rs. 54.56 million.

- Equitable mortgage of property bearing Plot # 39/1/1 , 31st Street ,Phase V, DHA, karachi (Property 
Owned by Mr.Khalid H. Shah).

10.3 Summit Bank Limited

Rs. _25.00 million (2017: Nil)

Rate of markup

Security :

- Debit authority for entire tenure be provided.

Note:

ERF Part I & II 

SBP Export Finance Rate + 1% per annum (2017: Nil)

- Personal guarantee of all directors and mortagagers.

- Cash charge of Rs. 35 million.

- As per circular No. 29 of 2016 regarding additional disclosures of Shahriah screening of Listed 
Companies all types of loans and advances must be clearly categorized and disclosed depending upon 
whether they carry any interest or mark-up arrangements or Islamic mode is used for the same.

2018 2017

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 12,654,747      34,652,388      

Accrued liabilities 1,542,599        2,651,983        

Advance from customers 3,832,598        8,008,431        

Workers' profits participation fund 2,452,495        770,813           

Workers welfare fund 1,224,857        292,909           

21,707,296      46,376,523      

12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

Rupees

The Company was served with the show cause notice in 1994 by the Pakistan Defence Officer's Housing
Authority (P.D.O.H.A.) seeking to restrain it from continuing to use its factory premises for industrial use. The
Company was granted a stay against P.D.O.H.A. in the said matter by the Honorable Sindh High Court in 1994.
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The Honorable Sindh High Court has subsequently in 1998 dismissed the Civil Miscellaneous Application
(C.M.A.) filed in separate suits by the P.D.O.H.A. challenging the grounds on which stay was granted to the
Company. The Company does not foresee any contingency in this respect nor has therefore made any

Commitments

Commitment for export sales as at June 30, 2018 is Rs.10.00 million (2017: Rs. 14.50 million).

2018 2017

13 SALES - NET 

Export sales 48,164,033      128,216,450    

Export rebate 3,533,893        5,104,663        

Less: Commission / discount -                   (105,400)          

51,697,926      133,215,713    

14 COST OF SALES

Raw, packing and other material consumed 14.1 21,306,759      46,426,249      

Production expenses 14.2 25,770,176      49,435,065      

Cost of goods manufactured 47,076,935      95,861,314      

Opening stock of finished goods 15,314,388      21,314,388      

Cost of goods available for sale 62,391,323      117,175,702    

Closing stock of finished goods (12,190,264)     (15,314,388)     

Company. The Company does not foresee any contingency in this respect nor has therefore made any
provision there against.

Rupees

Closing stock of finished goods (12,190,264)     (15,314,388)     

50,201,059      101,861,314    

2018 2017

14.1 Raw, packing and other material consumed

Opening stock 88,194,092      64,193,139      

Purchases 18,750,579      70,427,202      

106,944,671    134,620,341    

Closing stock (85,637,912)     (88,194,092)     

21,306,759      46,426,249      

2018 2017

14.2 Production expenses

Rupees

Rupees

Cutting and stitching charges 13,509,402      35,602,021      

Salaries, wages and other benefits 14.2.1 9,109,196        9,161,753        

Repairs and maintenance 775,796           956,639           

Depreciation 4.1 194,541           210,197           

Fuel and power 956,844           1,253,834        

Rent, rates and taxes 616,923           1,399,236        

Telephone, fax and postage 139,100           104,503           

Printing and stationery 27,603             57,562             

Entertainment expense 440,771           689,320           

25,770,176      49,435,065      

14.2.1 This includes amount of Rs.213.247/- (2017: Rs. 342,483/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
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2018 2017

15 ADMINISTRATVE EXPENSES

Directors' remuneration 15.1 -                   -                   

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 15.2 2,754,729        2,110,393        

Communication expense 122,690           127,785           

Insurance expense 97,611             112,072           

Utilities 518,697           638,049           

Printing and stationery 81,280             149,462           

Legal and professional 53,064             50,000             

Rupees

Legal and professional 53,064             50,000             

Fees and subscription 563,925           922,707           

Vehicle running and maintenance 115,140           169,350           

Entertainment expense 215,381           302,399           

Repairs and maintenance 43,675             122,577           

Donations 15.3 78,873             77,400             

Depreciation 4.1 129,694           140,131           

4,774,759        4,922,325        

15.1

15.2 This includes amount of Rs. 66,019/- (2017:Rs. 104,893/-) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

15.3 None of the directors or their spouses have any interest in the above donee funds.

2018 2017

16 DISTRIBUTION COST

Advertising and sales promotion 1,026,579        2,080,935        

Postage, telex and telegram 75,805             1,224,339        

Travelling expense 717,310           424,730           

The board of directors of the company has decided not to accrue Directors' remuneration for the year
ended June 30, 2018. Now, the only single executive director remains to get remuneration has agreed
to forgo his part of remuneration for the year under review in the interest of the company.

Rupees

Travelling expense 717,310           424,730           

Freight, handling and insurance 1,375,785        3,289,159        

Others 71,432             1,683,791        

3,266,911        8,702,954        

2018 2017

17 FINANCE COST

Markup and interest charges 917,744           638,112           

Bank charges and commission 380,882           1,125,147        

1,298,626        1,763,259        

18 OTHER INCOME

Profit / (loss) on foreign currency deposit accounts (1,023,296)       (6,038)              

Gain on sale of land non depreciated asset 58,302,480      -                   

Rupees

Exchange gain / (loss) - net (35,846)            (63,577)            

57,243,338      (69,615)            
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19 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' welfare fund 931,948           398,713           

Workers' profit participation fund 2,452,495        770,813           

Auditor Remuneration 19.1 350,000           350,000           

3,734,443        1,519,526        

19.1 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee 250,000           250,000           

Half yearly review fee 100,000           100,000           

Other certifications' fee/expenses -                   -                   

350,000           350,000           

20 TAXATION

Current 

-for the year 20.1 433,517           1,076,299        

-prior year -                   -                   -prior year -                   -                   

433,517           1,076,299        

20.1

20.2

No temporary differences arise between accounting profits and taxable income owing to final tax
scheme under which company's income is assessed on the basis of tax on export sales and therefore
no deferred tax liability has arisen.

The company's income fall within the ambit of final tax regime under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
and therefore reconcilation between accounting profit and taxable income is not practicable has not
been presented here. 

2018 2017

21 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit after taxation 45,231,949      13,300,421      

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 6,000,000        6,000,000        

Earnings per share - basic and diluted - Rupees 7.54                 2.22                 

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Rupees

Number

Rupees

Related parties comprise of group companies, directors and their close family members, major shareholders of
the Company, key management personnel and staff provident fund. Remuneration and benefits to executives
of the Company are in accordance with the terms of the employment. Remuneration of chief Executive,
directors and executives is as follows:
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2018 20172018 2017

Loan from directors (Mr Khalid Shah) 2,015,356           129,856           

Directors loan movement (Mr Khalid Shah) (1,885,500)          (25,310)            

Directors remuneration -                   -                   

Directors remuneration payable 1,886,047           1,886,047        

Workers profit participation fund payable 2,452,495           770,813           

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 2018 2017

23.1 Financial instruments by category Note

FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Loans and receivables

Trade debts - considered good -                   -                   

Advances, deposit, prepayments 

and other receivables 6 39,856,480      10,660,241      

Cash and bank balances 7 36,337,561      2,522,986        

76,194,041      13,183,227      

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Rupees

Rupees

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

Short term borrowing - secured 10 40,800,000      19,500,664      

Loan from directors 2,015,356        129,856           

Un claimed Dividend 2,613,991        2,613,991        

Trade and other payables 11 21,707,296      46,376,523      

67,136,643      68,621,034      
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FORM OF PROXY

IMPORTANT:

A member entitled to attend and vote at Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to 

attend and vote instead of him/her. No persons shall act as a proxy, who is not a member of the 

company except that a Company may appoint a person who is not a member.

An instrument of proxy duly stamped, signed and witnessed and the power of attorney or other 
authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notoriety certified copy of such power or authority, in 
order to be valid, must be deposited at the registered office of the company at least 48 hours before 
the time of the meeting.

Signature should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy are deposited by a 
member with the Company, all such instrument of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

_________________   
Signature of Witness

Shareholder's Folio No.____________________________ Number of Share held____________________

Signature of Member

On Revenue Stamp of

Appropriate Value

I/ We___________________________________of____________________________________________ 

being a member(s) of Leather Up Ltd., and holder of ___________________Ordinary Shares as per Share 

Register Folio/CDC Account No. _________________, hereby   appoint ___________________Folio/CDC 

Account No. ____________ of _______________CNIC No. or Passport No.__________________or failing 

whom____________________Folio/CDC Account No. of ______________________CNIC No. or Passport 

no._______________who is also a member of the Company as my/our proxy in my/ our absence to attend and 

vote for me/us on my /our behalf at the 26th Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on October 27, 

2018 at 05:00 P.M and at any adjournment of thereof.  

As witness my/our hand this____________________ day of ________________________________2018 

Signed by the said______________________________________________________________________

in presence of _________________________________________________________________________

_________________( full address )___________________________________________________.
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